KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL

Environment and Highways Committee

Monday 13th January 2020 at 7.00 pm in The Mayor's Parlour, Town Hall, Kendal

PRESENT Councillors Jonathan Owen (Chair), Eamonn Hennessy (Vice

Chair), Giles Archibald, Susanne Long, Shirley Evans, Julia Dunlop

and Adam Edwards

APOLOGIES Councillor Chris Rowley

OFFICERS Stacy Hurley (Project Manager) and Nicky King (Council Secretary)

713/19/20 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

None.

714/19/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

715/19/20 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH NOVEMBER 2019

The Chairman presented the minutes of the meeting held on 26th November 2019, which had been approved by full Council on 6th

January 2020.

It was proposed by Councillor Evans that the minutes be approved as a correct record. This was seconded by Councillor Archibald and

carried with three abstentions.

RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26th

November 2019 be accepted as a correct record.

MATTERS ARISING (Not on Agenda)

716/19/20 Kendal Experimental Traffic Order (Minute 608/19/20)

Councillor Archibald observed that at the last meeting "Members agreed it was difficult to provide the feedback CCC were requesting". He reminded Committee that the Traffic Order was originally at the request of KTC as part of work undertaken by the taskforce working on the Market Place. He felt Committee needed to respond further and asked for an update. Stacy advised she had spoken to Victoria Upton at CCC explaining that Committee were finding it difficult to provide feedback over and above the comments made at the meeting and made enquiries about the consultation process and CCC's own consensus. Their intention was to request that the Traffic Order become permanent.

Councillor Archibald suggested Committee request sight of the consultation document. The Chair added that the opinion of Ward Councillors could also be requested to ascertain whether there are any particular problems within the Wards. Known problems appear

to have arisen during the period running up the start of the Traffic Order and when the Order was first put in place. The problem regarding taxi parking was reiterated.

It was agreed that Stacy will request a copy of the consultation document along with further details. Councillor Long suggested she obtain guidance of what questions CCC have asked so the same questions can be asked of KTC Councillors to ensure similar feedback.

RESOLVED

That Stacy will request a copy of the consultation document along with further details from CCC so that comments from Ward Councillors to be requested.

717/19/20

Dark Skies Campaign – Minute 600/19/20

Following the presentation at the last meeting Councillor Archibald had asked Johanna Korndorfer, Dark Skies Officer for Friends of the Lake District, to consider simple steps which all tiers of Government could do to assist the campaign. Stacy said Johanna was due to leave her role and understood she would be handing over to her successor shortly. Stacy will make contact and follow up.

RESOLVED

Stacy will make contact with Johanna Korndorfer and request an update.

718/19/20

PROJECT MANAGER REPORT

The Project Manager presented the update for January 2020 which had previously been circulated. The following points were highlighted:

Castle Walkway

Expenditure of up to £1k had previously been agreed to repair the walkway adjacent to the ski slope. Stacy advised that a second site visit has revealed further decay. The rotten timbers are now revealing steel timbers and there has also been further land slippage. There will be an increased cost of up to £1.5k for the necessary repairs. Work has not yet started as permits are awaited from SLDC. It was noted that the new directional signage directs people to this walkway.

Tree Planter Cladding

A competitive quote had previously been obtained from Richardsons of Penrith, however they have requested a tub to use as a template and the practicalities of moving the existing tubs had stopped further progress. Stacy advised that the company who supplied the tubs have agreed to provide a tub on a sale or return basis. This means the tub can be delivered to Penrith in order for a prototype to be made at an approximate cost of £140. The total cost for all 9 tree planters will be just over £3k excluding installation. Committee agreed they were happy for the work to go ahead.

Kendal Boundary Signs

The four boundary signs on entries to Kendal are in need of repair (grinding back rusted areas, priming and repainting in situ) at a cost of approximately £1k. This item was taken out of the Development Fund list of bids and will therefore need to come out of the maintenance budget.

Defib at Oxenholme

Stacy has contacted First Responders to ask questions regarding typical ownership and liability of the phone box and defib. BT's public consultation runs until 26 Feb. The Post Office will close on 29 Feb and the defib will be put into storage after that. She has sought further clarification from Councillor Rathbone as to liability etc. He advised the group of Oxenholme residents would be looking for KTC to take on ownership.BT will take on electricity costs for 7 years but, whether they will retain the ownership and liability needs to be established. The project manager reminded members that if this cannot be completed before the end of the financial year, that there will be a requirement for the funding to come from next year's New Infrastructure budget.

It was noted that there were budgetary considerations to be made for the items above which Members would discuss later in the meeting when the Budgetary Control Statement was considered.

Members were advised that Stacy would finish in her role on 5th February when the Project Manager returns from her maternity leave. The Chair thanked Stacy for all her work in assisting the Committee.

719/19/20 PROPOSED DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH

Committee considered correspondence from CCC regarding a proposed diversion of public footpath numbers 536008 and 536009 north of Laurel Gardens, Kendal. The Chair observed that this is preparatory work in readiness for a potential future housing development north of Laurel Gardens.

Committee noted the proposed diversion and had no comments to make. Members were pleased such notifications are being submitted to KTC for comment.

RESOLVED

That Committee note the proposed diversion of public footpath numbers 536008 and 536009 north of Laurel Gardens, Kendal without comment.

720/19/20 CUMBRIAN WILDLIFE TRUST PRESENTATION

Stacy advised that she had met with Cumbrian Wildlife Trust, along with Councillor Hennessy, to discuss the possibility of a presentation re biodiversity. The Town Clerk had asked Committee to consider what they felt most appropriate, a presentation at a Full Council meeting, or an open meeting which could be attended by Officers, Councillors and other parties.

Following a general discussion Members agreed on an open approach. Stacy will look at potential dates for an evening meeting.

Councillor Archibald commented that invasive species is an emerging issue and one cause of biodiversity decline. Stacy will raise this issue with Cumbria Wildlife Trust to be included in the presentation. Councillor Hennessy said that Cumbria Wildlife Trust had offered a list of partnering organisations who it would be worthwhile inviting to the public meeting. He offered to follow up.

RESOLVED

That Stacy will look at potential dates for an open meeting to be held in the evening. This issue of invasive species to be raised with Cumbria Wildlife Trust as a potential topic. That Councillor Hennessy gain list of partnering organisations to participate in the open meeting.

721/19/20

2020/21 DEVELOPMENT PLAN PROJECTS

Biodiversity

Stacy informed Committee that a budget of £13.4k has been agreed for biodiversity in the next financial year, which incorporates previous green wall funding. She asked Members to be mindful that £7k remains from the LIP application, assuming LIP remain happy to fund alternative projects to the green wall. They have confirmed they are happy with £3k match funding for the ivy screening project. Proposals for all other alternative projects will be considered on a case by case basis. Committee were asked to start considering potential projects they would like to see delivered and a plan for a potential grant process should that be their preferred direction. It was agreed to add this to the agenda for the next meeting for further discussion. Councillor Long suggested there may be projects within Kendal Vision.

Councillor Archibald remarked that there was an opportunity to invite other parties such as the Rivers Trust to attend the open meeting. He suggested informing CCC, people working on invasive species etc and inviting them to spend a few minutes each explaining what they are doing to promote biodiversity. Councillor Hennessy suggested bat groups, butterfly groups etc be included and will follow up in this respect.

Stacy will contact Matt Williams of SLDC to inform him of Committee's plans.

RESOLVED

- 1. Stacy will inform Matt Williams of SLDC of Committee's plans in respect of biodiversity.
- 2. Potential biodiversity projects and grant process to be added to the agenda of the next meeting for discussion.

20's Plenty

Members were also informed that a budget of £12k is available from April 2020 for the 20's Plenty initiative. Question was raised as to how the project would be managed and whether this would be under the umbrella of the active travel group. The Chair replied that he was hopeful of Officer support and requested Stacy to clarify this with the Town Clerk.

Councillor Owen informed that the Town Clerk was engaging with Karen Johnson of CCC to make first steps.

Councillor Hennessy suggested an informal discussion be held with all interested parties as a first step. Councillor Archibald referred to information gained from the survey previously carried out and said it was important this be considered. Stacy will obtain the relevant information.

RESOLVED

- 1. Stacy to discuss officer support for the 20's Plenty project with the Town Clerk.
- 2. Stacy to obtain relevant information from the previous 20's Plenty survey.

722/19/20 ITEMS FOR THE NEWSLETTER

Stacy advised that she had sufficient material for the spring edition of the newsletter. Suggestions were put forward for a future edition as follows:

- Councillor Hennessy reported that KTC have given Cumbria Wildlife Trust 400 trees and they will also be planting hedges in Birds Park.
- Article on poverty and details of projects underway by certain Councillors to help combat this problem. Stacy will start gathering information from Councillors with the view to include where space permits.

Councillor Archibald mentioned that SLDC will run a pilot scheme during the February half term. The scheme will provide meals for children who are on free school meals during term time. Details are being finalised, however he believed all primary schools will be given the opportunity to send children. Councillor Archibald will ask Suzie Pye to forward details to Councillor Evans.

RESOLVED

Stacy to begin gathering information from Councillors for a future article on poverty.

723/19/20 REVIEW OF SPEND AGAINST BUDGET 2019/20

Committee reviewed spend against the current budget up to 31st December 2020.

Stacy advised that several requests for funding needed consideration (some of which had been raised earlier in the meeting) as follows:

 Maintenance work to benches - due to the Townscape Manager awaiting a shoulder operation in the next couple of weeks, maintenance work to 15-17 benches was unlikely to be carried out. Members were asked whether they wished to find alternative funding for this work. A quotation of £85-£95 per bench had been obtained from Different Strokes.

- Kendal Castle Walkway repairs funding of £1.5k required (an increase from the previously agreed £1k)
- <u>Badges on benches</u> the trial on 10 benches proved successful using screws to fix the badges in place. £625 is required to carry out the work to all remaining benches.
- Burton Road Bus Shelter paving work is required at a cost of approx. £430.

Councillor Long requested funding for two projects as follows:

- Shortfall of between £112 and £187 for work to a section of wall at the junction of Lumley Road and Stonecross Road which, after some time, has now been designated as a public footpath. The total cost of the work is approximately £900.
- New bench at the bus stop on Wattsfield Road.

A general discussion ensued during which Members considered available budget. The Chair summarised and proposed the following expenditure:

- New Bench at bus stop on Wattsfield £800
- Maintenance work to benches £1,000
- Work to wall at junction of Lumley Road/Stonecross Road £200
- Burton Road bus shelter paving £430
- Bench badges £625
- Kendal Castle Walkway £1,638 (from Environment Reserve)

The proposal was seconded by Councillor Edwards and carried unanimously.

It was noted that funding for the Oxenholme defib had already been allocated.

Councillor Evans further proposed that funding of £1,100 for the refurbishment of boundary signs (discussed earlier in the meeting) be allocated from next year's budget. This was seconded by Councillor Archibald and carried unanimously.

RESOLVED

- 1. That Committee agree to the additional expenditure highlighted.
- 2. That funding of £1,100 for the refurbishment of boundary signs be allocated from next year's budget.

724/19/20 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Environment Agency - Tree Removal

Councillor Archibald commented that when the EA remove trees as part of the flood defence work, there will be a large amount of wood available to use. He wanted to ensure KTC were engaged with the EA to be have the opportunity to consult on its usage. Councillor Hennessy will raise this matter at the subgroup meeting next week.

Councillor Edwards put forward a suggestion of utilising some of the wood from the trees to develop a sculpture trail. Councillor Long understood this idea was being considered by the subgroup.

RESOLVED

Councillor Hennessy to raise the matter of the use of wood following tree removal by the EA at the forthcoming subgroup meeting.

Gooseholme Bridge

The Chair reported good press regarding parapets from Gooseholme Bridge which have been reused elsewhere in the country.

SLDC Officer for Climate Change and Biodiversity

Councillor Archibald reported that SLDC are in the process of appointing a new officer who will be responsible for developing a Climate Change and Biodiversity Action Plan. Stacy will contact Dan Hudson to request an introduction.

RESOLVED

Stacy to contact Dan Hudson to request an introduction to the SLDC Climate Change and Biodiversity officer once in place.

BT Engineers Building on Sandylands

Councillor Edwards reported an ongoing problem with youths entering the engineers building behind Haytons. This was presenting a danger to youths. The Chair suggested that a complete list of such buildings which Committee would like to see removed be compiled with pressure being applied to the owners. He added that KTC Planning Committee may have some input in this respect. Councillor Edwards will liaise with the Chair of the Planning Committee.

RESOLVED

Councillor Edwards to liaise with the Chair of the Planning Committee regarding compiling a list of unused buildings Committee would like to see removed.

Explore Signs

Stacy raised the matter of the Explore signs which it had previously been agreed to take ownership of from SLDC. She had looked into insurance of the signs and reported that they are insured for 3rd party liability, however to ensure against damage there will be a £200 increase in premium. Stacy highlighted that the insurance budget for next financial year has been set so there may be a need to pay the first year increase via the committee's budget. SLDC have taken the decision not to insure against damage due to the cost in the past. Each sign costs £3,000 and the insurance excess is £100. Members were asked whether they wished to insure against damage. It was agreed to make a decision at the next meeting.

RESOLVED

Decision on whether to insure Explore signs against damage to be made at the next meeting.

Citizens Jury - Zero Carbon Project

The Chair advised that the crowdfunder window will be open for the month of February. There will be a key meeting of the Communications Group on 22nd January at 5.30pm in the Town Hall. Sector representatives will be invited to attend. The Chair commented that one positive of the project not being fully funded is

the level of public engagement that has arisen as a result of the crowdfunder.

725/19/20 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday 9th March 2020 at 7pm.

The meeting closed at 8.41pm.

Summary of Information, Resolutions and Recommendations to Council

Min	Subject	Informat Council	ion/Resolution/Recommendation to
716	Kendal Experimental Traffic Order	RES	That Stacy will request a copy of the consultation document along with further details from CCC so that comments from Ward Councillors to be requested.
717	Dark Skies Campaign	RES	Stacy will make contact with Johanna Korndorfer and request an update.
719	Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath	RES	That Committee note the proposed diversion of public footpath numbers 536008 and 536009 north of Laurel Gardens, Kendal without comment.
720	Cumbrian Wildlife Trust	RES	That Stacy will look at potential dates for an open meeting to be held in the evening. This issue of invasive species to be raised with Cumbria Wildlife Trust as a potential topic. That Councillor Hennessy gain list of partnering organisations to participate in the open meeting.
721	Biodiversity	RES	 Stacy will inform Matt Williams of SLDC of Committee's plans in respect of biodiversity. Potential biodiversity projects and grant process to be added to the agenda of the next meeting for discussion.
	20's Plenty	RES	 Stacy to discuss officer support for the 20's Plenty project with the Town Clerk. Stacy to obtain relevant information from the previous 20's Plenty survey.
722	Items for the Newsletter	RES	Stacy to begin gathering information from Councillors for a future article on poverty.
723	Review of Spend Against Budget 2019/20	RES	 That Committee agree to the additional expenditure highlighted. That funding of £1,100 for the refurbishment of boundary signs be allocated from next year's budget.
724	EA Tree Removal	RES	Councillor Hennessy to raise the matter of the use of wood following tree removal by the EA at the forthcoming subgroup meeting.
	SLDC Officer for Climate Change and Biodiversity	RES	Stacy to contact Dan Hudson to request an introduction to the SLDC Climate

BT Engineers Building on Sandylands	RES	Change and Biodiversity officer once in place. Councillor Edwards to liaise with the Chair of the Planning Committee regarding compiling a list of unused buildings Committee would like to see removed.
Explore Signs	RES	Decision on whether to insure Explore signs against damage to be made at the next meeting.